

# GADE VALLEY HARRIERS

## Constitution

## Bylaws & Rules

### Table of Contents

1	CONSTITUTION .....	2
2	BYLAWS AND RULES .....	7
3	Appendix A – Safety Charter .....	9
4	Appendix B - Committee .....	10
5	Appendix C – Codes of Conduct .....	13
6	Appendix D - Commendation, Comments and Concerns Procedure .....	15
7	Appendix E - Marathon Club Place Rules.....	16
8	Appendix F – Election of Committee .....	18

## **1 CONSTITUTION**

### **1.1 NAME**

The name of the Club shall be **GADE VALLEY HARRIERS**.

Hereinafter called 'the Club', the colours of which shall be:

- 1.1.1 Black Vests with Green and Red Vertical Stripe.
- 1.1.2 Black Shorts.

### **1.2 AIMS & OBJECTIVES (See Bylaws and Rules BR2)**

The Club is established as a not-for-profit organisation.

In particular, the Club is established:

- 1.2.1 To encourage and promote Amateur Athletics, as defined by England Athletics (EA) (BR2), within the area co-terminus with the Dacorum District.
- 1.2.2 To promote and organise co-operation in the achievement of the above purpose and bring together such persons who are engaged in the furtherance of the above purposes.
- 1.2.3 In the furtherance of the above purposes, but not further or otherwise, the Club may:
  - 1.2.3.1 Obtain, collect and receive money and funds by way of contributions, donations, subscriptions, affiliation fees, legacies, grants and other lawful methods and accept and receive gifts of property of any description.
  - 1.2.3.2 Procure and provide information.
- 1.2.4 Procure to be written and printed, published, issued and circulated gratuitously or otherwise any reports or periodicals, books, pamphlets, leaflets, or other documents.
- 1.2.5 Arrange and provide for, or join in arranging and providing for, the holding of exhibitions, meetings, lectures, training events and other related activities.

### **1.3 MEMBERSHIP (See Bylaws & Rules BR2, BR3, BR4, BR5, BR6, BR7, BR8)**

- 1.3.1 Membership of the Club is confined to 'amateurs' as defined by EA. (BR2)
- 1.3.2 There shall be such classes of membership and subscriptions as the Club prescribes from time to time. (BR3, BR4)
- 1.3.3 Election to any class of membership shall be by a majority vote of the Club Committee upon receipt of a duly completed Membership Application Form accompanied by the correct annual subscription fee. See appendix A Membership Application Form & current subscription.
- 1.3.4 Club members will be required to comply with Club Rules and Bylaws (BR5). Such Bylaws and Rules will include:
  - 1.3.4.1 Codes of Conduct for the Club and Members (Appendix C) Commendation, Comments and Concerns Procedure (Appendix D), London Marathon Club Places Ballot Rules (Appendix E)

## Gade Valley Harriers Constitution and Bylaws

- 1.3.4.2 Any others as may become necessary from time to time
- 1.3.4.3 The Club may at its discretion upon formal submission to an Annual General Meeting (AGM) or Special General Meeting (SGM) and after approval by the Club Committee elect or re-elect: A PRESIDENT, VICE PRESIDENT(S), and LIFE AND/OR HONARARY MEMBERS. The latter two classes of membership only to be conferred on persons in recognition of services rendered to the Club, the former two classes being ex officio to all Committees.
- 1.3.4.4 A member intending to resign from the Club shall give due notice in writing to the Club's Committee. Membership shall terminate as from the date of the letter of resignation unless that member is financially indebted to the Club, in which case the Club Committee shall withhold acceptance of the resignation until such time as all financial debts are settled to the Club's satisfaction. The Club will follow guidelines laid down by EA for resignation and changing of first claim club registration.
- 1.3.4.5 A member who has not tendered his/her resignation in the prescribed manner prior to the date of the payment of the Club's annual subscription falling due shall be liable for ensuing year's subscription.
- 1.3.4.6 Should a member's subscription become six months in arrears the Club Committee shall have power to expel that member. (BR6, BR7, BR8)
- 1.3.4.7 In the event that the Committee (following a reasonable investigation and review of evidence) determine that the behaviour of a club member breaches the Code of Conduct for the Club and its Members (Constitution Appendix C, Code of Conduct for Club and Club Members), that the member may be issued with a warning letter setting out the nature of the warning, reason for issue, tenure and action to be taken for any subsequent incident occurring, including expulsion. Depending on the nature of the behaviour, the Member may be expelled without notice and with no right of appeal.

### **1.4 OFFICERS (See Bylaws & Rules BR1)**

- 1.4.1 At the Annual General meeting the Club shall elect an Honorary Chair (here after referred to as Chair) and such Honorary Officers (here after referred to as Officers) as the Club may from time to time decide. (BR1, Appendix B)
  - 1.4.1.1 The Chair and Officers shall hold office until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Club next after their election.
  - 1.4.1.2 The Club may elect an Honorary General Secretary (here after referred to as Secretary) and determine his/her duties.
- 1.4.2 The Chair and Officers shall form the Club Committee (see 5 below).
  - 1.4.2.1 The Club Committee shall appoint one or more qualified auditors and may determine their remuneration, if any.

### **1.5 CLUB COMMITTEE (See Bylaws & Rules BR1)**

## Gade Valley Harriers Constitution and Bylaws

- 1.5.1 The purposes of the Club and its general policies shall be carried out by a Committee to be known as the CLUB COMMITTEE all of whose members shall be first claim competing members who shall have been duly elected as such to the Club and shall therefore be eligible to be elected to serve on such a Committee.
- 1.5.2 The Club Committee may appoint other non-executive officers as it sees fit in order to further the aims of the Club.
- 1.5.3 The duty of the Club Committee shall also include the provision of administration, management and control of the affairs, finances and property of the Club.
- 1.5.4 The Club Committee shall lay down and have cause to have printed and circulated to every duly elected member such Rules and Bylaws as it may think fit for the furtherance of the Club's aims and objects. Any alterations to said Bylaws and Rules shall be ratified at a subsequent AGM.
- 1.5.5 The Club Committee shall have powers to co-opt persons having special knowledge or experience or to fill any vacancy occurring providing that the number of such co-opted members shall NOT exceed one quarter of the elected Club Committee.
- 1.5.6 The Club Committee shall retire annually but shall be eligible for re-election. As part of the notice to club members of an AGM (see 6ii below) a list of proposed Club Committee posts, with a short description of the duties associated with each post, will be circulated to all members of the club.
- 1.5.7 The Club Committee shall meet as often as is necessary to carry out the business of the Club and in order to promote its stated aims and objectives, usually monthly.
- 1.5.8 The Secretary should be advised of any nominations from members of the Club for Honorary Officers of the Club Committee before an AGM or SGM. Should nominations exceed vacancies, election shall be by ballot. (Appendix F Procedures for Election to the Club Committee).

### **1.6 MEETINGS**

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Club shall usually be held in September/October and at a time and place that the Club Committee shall determine.

At least 21 days' clear notice of the AGM shall be given in writing by the Club Secretary to all members.

- 1.6.1 At the AGM the business shall include as necessary:
  - 1.6.1.1 Election of Chair and other Officers who form the Club Committee.
  - 1.6.1.2 Appointment of auditors.
  - 1.6.1.3 Election of Life and/or Honorary Members.
  - 1.6.1.4 Consideration of an Annual Report of the Club's full activities during the past year and the formal adoption of such a report.
  - 1.6.1.5 Consideration of the audited accounts the formal adoption of such accounts.
  - 1.6.1.6 Any other report/s which the Club Committee consider necessary for the clear explanation of the Club's activities and continued well-being.

Special General Meetings (SGM) may be called at 14 days clear notice in writing to the Club Secretary upon the demand of one quarter or more of first claim club members or by the Chair or by the Club Committee.

Any member who is in arrears for his/her annual subscription to the Club shall not be permitted to attend an AGM or SGM or vote.

## **1.7 QUORUM**

A quorum for any meeting of the Club or Club Committee shall be one half or other number as the Club Committee may from time to time prescribe.

## **1.8 FINANCE**

The Club shall have power to raise money by means of:

- 1.8.1 Membership subscriptions.
- 1.8.2 Donations.
- 1.8.3 Legacies.
- 1.8.4 Grant aid from Statutory Authorities.
- 1.8.5 Gifts, loans (without interest) and other sources.
- 1.8.6 Charging of fees.
- 1.8.7 The income and property of the Club, where ever derived, shall be applied towards the promotion of the aims and objects of the Club as set forth herewith and no portion thereof shall be paid in any way or transferred directly or indirectly by way of dividend, bonus or concession or otherwise howsoever by way of profit to any member of the Club.
- 1.8.8 Provided that nothing hereon shall prevent payment in good faith of reasonable and proper remuneration to any officer or servant of the Club or the repayment of proper out of pocket expenses.
- 1.8.9 Disbursements from Club funds shall be made only by approval of the Club Committee. This can be either by cheque (bearing the signature of one of the agreed signatories ratified by the Club Committee and recorded on the Bank Mandate, this mandate being lodged with a registered Bank) or by internet banking duly authorised with the bank. The mandate is to be reviewed at the first meeting of Club Committee following the AGM.
- 1.8.10 The Club may appoint a custodian trustee or a trust corporation of not less than three persons to hold any property held by or in trust for the Club.

## **1.9 DISSOLUTION**

- 1.9.1 The Club may at any time be dissolved by a resolution passed by a two thirds majority of those present and voting at a meeting of the Club called by the Club Committee of which at least 21 days' clear notice shall be sent to all members of the Club.
- 1.9.2 In the event of the dissolution of the Club all Club assets shall accrue and be vested in England Athletics after all Club debts have been discharged and the final accounts audited.

**1.10 THE CLUB'S YEAR OF AUDIT**

The Club's financial year shall run from 1st January to December 31st. Once in every year (at least) the accounts shall be audited by one or more qualified auditors.

**1.11 ALTERATIONS TO THE CONSTITUTION**

No alterations or additions to this Constitution may be made unless any proposed alteration or addition shall receive not less than two-thirds of the members agreement gathered by voting either at the AGM or electronically.

## 2 BYLAWS AND RULES

Reference	Subject	Document reference
	<b><u>Club Committee</u></b>	
BR1	List of Honorary Officers and Executive Committee for ensuing year giving name.	1.4, 1.5.8, and 4
	<b><u>Membership and Subscription</u></b>	
BR2	Refer to England Athletics and UKA websites: www.englandathletics.org and www.uka.org.uk	1.2.1 and 1.3.1
BR3	There shall be the following classes of membership for the time being:  Adult (17+) Adults (of pensionable age) Trial/Temporary (limited to attending up to 4 training sessions without formally applying for membership)  Age groups shall be determined by birthdays which fall on or before 1 January.	1.3.2 and 3
BR4	The Club Committee shall at the first meeting following an AGM consider the level of subscription due for the following year related to the classes of membership defined in BR3. All subscriptions shall fall due for payment on 1 January. Members will be given at least one month's notice of any change in annual subscription.	1.3.2 and 1.4.1
BR5	The Club and Club Members are required to comply with the following: Codes of Conduct for Club and Club Members Commendation, Comments and Concerns Procedure London Marathon Club Places Ballot Rules	1.5.4 5 6 7
BR6	The Club Executive Committee shall have the power to expel any member whose subscription is six months in arrears provided a month's notice in writing shall have been sent to a member by a recorded delivery letter, addressed to their last known address informing them of the proposed action of the Committee.	1.3.4.6
BR7	Members who resign, fail to renew their membership or are expelled from the club will be resigned as club members on the England Athletics database.	1.3.4.6
BR8	No member whose subscription is in arrears is eligible to take part in any competition or event promoted by the Club.	1.3.4.6

## Gade Valley Harriers Constitution and Bylaws

<b><u>Training Sessions</u></b>		
BR9	The Club shall arrange and provide a suitable venue with accommodation when and if necessary, for athletic training sessions during the whole year. Such training sessions are to be open to all subscribers.	3
BR10	A member who has previously taken part in any athletic or cross-country event in the name or colours of any other club shall not be eligible to compete for the Club as a 'first claim' member for the period of time stipulated by England Athletics.	
BR11	The Club shall organise and promote such internal Club Championships as it sees fit. All such championships shall be organised and run in accordance with the rules laid down by England Athletics and other relevant recognised associations.	
BR12	The Club shall apply to join and, if accepted, compete in such athletic and/or cross country or other competitive leagues as may be organised by England Athletics and other relevant recognised associations.	
<b>NOTE</b>	Where there is no mention of an issue within these rules (i.e. the rules are 'silent') the Club Committee may agree to consult England Athletics for guidance.	



### **3 Appendix A – Safety Charter**

#### **3.1 Principles**

- 3.1.1 The Committee and Coaches of Gade Valley Harriers are committed to ensuring the highest standards of safety for all runners on club nights
- 3.1.2 All UK Athletics affiliated coaches and run leaders have an obligation under the terms of their license to ensure runners' safety at all times

#### **3.2 Coaches/Leaders' Obligations**

- 3.2.1 Undertake a Risk Assessment for each session
- 3.2.2 Provide a clear briefing for all sessions, both in advance on Facebook and in person at the clubhouse before the session starts. These briefings will highlight any risks identified in the RiskAssessment
- 3.2.3 Ensure that all runners are following the Runners Code of Conduct (see below)
- 3.2.4 Report any incident (including near misses) via the UK Athletics approved reporting system (<http://www.uka.org.uk/governance/health-safety/online-accident-incident-report-form>)
- 3.2.5 Review Safety Charter with GVH committee bi-annually (Winter & Summer) and following any incidents

#### **3.3 Runner's Code of Conduct**

- 3.3.1 Runners will familiarise themselves as much as possible in advance with the session and route and any pre-identified risks
- 3.3.2 Runners will inform coaches of any injury or illness which may prevent them taking part in all or some of the session
- 3.3.3 When running in the dark or at dusk all runners will wear Hi-Viz clothing
- 3.3.4 Runners will follow common safety practices and when crossing roads will find the safest place to do so (e.g. pedestrian or pelican crossing, bridge of underpass, especially if such a crossing forms part of the published route)
- 3.3.5 Runners will show consideration for all other road users and pedestrians using pavements and footpaths
- 3.3.6 When running off-road, runners will take suitable caution at gates, stiles or other countryside 'furniture'. Also, runners will be aware of changing underfoot conditions and hazards such as tree roots
- 3.3.7 Agreement:
  - A Coach or Leader may ask a runner to leave a session if they fail to follow the **Runner's Code of Conduct**

## **4 Appendix B - Committee**

### **4.1 Committee Members as voted at 2020 AGM:**

Chair	Cook, Andy
Secretary	Cook, Helen
Treasurer	Newing, Stephen
Women's Team Captain	Cottrill, Angeline
Men's Team Captain	Wells, Andrew
Social Secretary	McCluskey, Mary
Kit Manager	Lawler, Maria
Communications Officer	Birnie, James
Website Manager	Newing, Andy
Facilities and Equipment Manager	Mercer, Phil
Club League and Results Manager	Tucker, Gareth

### **4.2 Core Club Committee role descriptions and accountabilities:**

Core committee members are expected to attend all sections of committee meetings regardless of content.

#### **Chair**

Ensure committee runs smoothly Lead committee and AGM meetings  
Take on some of general workload of the committee

#### **Secretary**

Manage club correspondence and act as point of contact for the club  
Take minutes of the club meetings  
Take on the responsibilities of data protection officer

#### **Treasurer**

Maintain club accounts  
Make payments on behalf of club and reimburse club members for expenditure on behalf of club  
Obtain members subscriptions and keep record of club members  
Register members with UK Athletics

#### **Women's and Men's Team Captains**

Encourage and coordinate individual club members and teams to participate in races  
Coordinate entries and logistics for Cross Country Fixtures (Chiltern League, County Championships & Southern Championships)  
  
Provide advice and encouragement to individual runners in co-

Gade Valley Harriers Constitution and Bylaws  
operation with the Head Coaches  
Give Member of the Month Awards  
Welcome new members and help them to identify appropriate training  
group in co-operation with the Head Coaches  
Act as Welfare Officers in line with Commendation, Comments and  
Complaints Procedure and England Athletics guidelines

#### **4.3 Extended Club Committee role descriptions and accountabilities:**

Extended committee members are only expected to attend committee meetings (or sections of meetings) where relevant. Extended committee members have the same voting rights as core committee members.

#### **Social Secretary**

Identify club social activities, publicise these and make bookings where necessary

#### **Kit Manager**

Maintain and purchase stock of club kit Publicise kit to club members  
Sale of kit items to club members

#### **Communications Officer**

Advertise club activities  
Liaise with local press over coverage of club activities  
Be responsible for coordinating all club communications

#### **Club League and Results Officer**

Manage the club league, confirming and publicising fixtures, managing club league results and scoring.

#### **Website Manager**

Manage the upkeep and on-going development of the GVH website, supported by various content owners.

#### **Facilities and Equipment Manager**

The key point of contact regarding the GVH facilities, being the link with Boxmoor Cricket Club and to ensure the facilities meet the needs of the club.

**Non-Executive Club Roles** (non-elected roles appointed based on experience and expertise)

Head Coach(es)

Price, Edward

## Gade Valley Harriers Constitution and Bylaws

Head Coach(s) - minimum requirement for the role will be that of Level 2 Coach as undertaken on the UK Athletics official course

- Design and deliver the various training schedules throughout the year including a Learn to Run course
- Coordinate Run Leaders for support at sessions
- Create and/or advise on individual plans for runners as requested and be available to answer queries during club sessions
  
- In cooperation with the Team Managers to monitor runners' progress and give feedback and encouragement when appropriate
  
- Welcome new members and help them to identify appropriate training group
- Design & manage the Club League
- Post sessions on Facebook and create routes where necessary for each group

Marathon Training Run (MTR) Director

Helen Heathcote

MTR Chief Course Marker

Guy Woollett

Handicap League Manager

Helen Terry

## **5 Appendix C – Codes of Conduct**

### **5.1 Codes of Conduct for Club and Club Members**

Gade Valley Harriers has adopted Codes of Conduct for Club and Club Members based on standards as laid down by England Athletics. These standard codes are shown below, omitting those that are not relevant to this Club

### **5.2 Code of Conduct for Athletics Clubs:**

#### **As a responsible Athletics Club Gade Valley Harriers will:**

- 5.2.1 Adopt national welfare policies and procedures, adhere to the codes of conduct and respond to any suspected breaches in accordance with the Welfare Procedures as laid down by England Athletics
- 5.2.2 Appoint Welfare Officers, one male and one female, and ensure that they are provided with appropriate training to act as a first point of contact for concerns about welfare issues. In GVH these will be the Men's and Women's Team Managers
- 5.2.3 Ensure that all staff and volunteers operating within the Club environment hold the appropriate qualifications and have undertaken the appropriate checks e.g. CRB//Disclosure Scotland, licences, qualifications such as massage, sports nutrition etc.
- 5.2.4 Ensure that club officers and volunteers always act responsibly and set an example to others
- 5.2.5 Respect the rights, dignity and worth of every Club member and others involved in athletics and treat everyone equally
- 5.2.6 Consistently promote positive aspects of the sport such as fair play and never condone rule violations or the use of prohibited or age-inappropriate substances
- 5.2.7 Challenge inappropriate behaviour and language by others
- 5.2.8 Place the welfare and safety of the athlete above other considerations including the development of performance
- 5.2.9 Report any suspected misconduct by club officials, coaches, technical officials or other people involved in athletics to the Club, Regional, National or UKA welfare officer as soon as possible

### **5.3 Code of Conduct for Athletes**

#### **As a responsible athlete all Club members will:**

- 5.3.1 Respect the rights, dignity and worth of every athlete, coach, technical official and others involved in athletics and treat everyone equally
- 5.3.2 Uphold the same values of sportsmanship off the field as you do when engaged in athletics
- 5.3.3 Co-operate fully with others involved in the sport such as coaches, technical officials, team managers, doctors, physiotherapists, sport scientists and representatives of the governing body in the best interests of the yourself and other athletes
- 5.3.4 Consistently promote positive aspects of the sport such as fair play and never condone rule violations or the use of prohibited or age-inappropriate substances
- 5.3.5 Anticipate and be responsible for your own needs including being organised, having the appropriate equipment and being on time

- 5.3.6 Always thank those who enable you to participate in athletics

**As a responsible Athlete, when participating in or attending any athletics activities, including training/coaching sessions and competition events you will:**

- 5.3.7 Act with dignity and display courtesy and good manners towards others
- 5.3.8 Avoid swearing and abusive language and irresponsible behaviour including behaviour that is dangerous to yourself or others, acts of violence, bullying, harassment and physical and sexual abuse
- 5.3.9 Challenge inappropriate behaviour and language by others
- 5.3.10 Never engage in any inappropriate or illegal behaviour
- 5.3.11 Avoid destructive behaviour and leave athletics venues as you find them
- 5.3.12 Not carry or consume alcohol to excess and/or illegal substances
- 5.3.13 Avoid carrying any items that could be dangerous to yourself or others excluding athletics equipment used in the course of your athletics activity

## **6 Appendix D - Commendation, Comments and Concerns Procedure**

### **6.1 Commendation:**

The GVH Committee endeavours to run the Club and its activities in a positive, constructive manner. We are always pleased to receive feedback, good or bad, as it enables us to develop and improve what we do for the benefit of the club and its members.

Please do tell us what has been good about your experience with GVH. Have you enjoyed an event we have organised? Do you get something positive from the training sessions? Do you find the website useful? We like to receive commendation for what we do.

### **6.2 Comments:**

The Committee also wish to ensure that members have access to a clear process by which they can raise concerns regarding both the Club's operation and conduct of members which could be deemed as detrimental to the Club's reputation or to other Club members.

The following sections describe how comments and concerns should be brought to the attention of the Committee and how these will be handled.

We are keen to receive all types of feedback so that we can be sure we are providing the services you want and need from your club. We welcome the opportunity to talk with you about any issue that you have.

You can do this by e-mail, on the phone or in person. Should any club member wish to make comments as to how the club could better serve its members, the member should either:

- 6.2.1 approach the appropriate Committee member to make their comment and put forward any proposals or ideas they have for improvement or
- 6.2.2 attend a monthly committee meeting to make any comments and put forward any proposals or ideas for consideration.

In either case, the Committee will discuss and consider the proposal and will provide a response within 14 days.

## **7 Appendix E - Marathon Club Place Rules**

### **Criteria on eligibility for Club members to enter draw for London Marathon (LM) club allocated places:**

- 7.1 You must have been a fully paid up member of the Club since the end of January in the year of application (e.g. if you wish to be considered for a Club place in the 2018 LM you must have been a member since the end of January 2017)
- 7.2 You must have completed the London Marathon application process and have been rejected the ballot. You must provide evidence of this if requested
- 7.3 You must be an active Club member and have EITHER attended a minimum of 24 training sessions during the previous calendar year OR participated in 2 Chiltern League fixtures OR assisted at one of the Marathon Training Runs. Any decisions about eligibility will be decided by the Committee.
- 7.4 You must put your name on the list, which will be posted on the Club noticeboard at the Clubhouse. The list will be up for a period of two weeks before the draw and names must be entered by 7pm on the night of the draw. In order to be fair eligibility will be checked. If you cannot attend the Club, you can e-mail your request to be included in the draw to [secretary@gadevalleyharriers.co.uk](mailto:secretary@gadevalleyharriers.co.uk). The deadline for receipt of requests for inclusion by e-mail Midnight on the night before the draw. In this e-mail please confirm which of the eligibility criteria in item 3 above you met.
- 7.5 Any Club member who receives one of the LM Club places will not be able to enter the LM draw for the following year's ballot, unless they subsequently had to pull out of running the LM early enough for their place to be transferred to another Club member.

The number of Club places allocated will not be known until late November. In the past the Club has received **2** places. Holding the Club ballot draw for places early will help Club members decide if they should go for a charity place.

Places will be allocated to Club members in the order which their names are drawn in the ballot

More than two names will be drawn out and additional names will go on the waiting list. If you receive a Club place in the draw and subsequently have to pull out, the place will be offered to those on the waiting list in the order in which they were drawn.

If you receive a place in the Club ballot you will be liable for the entry fee.



## **Brighton Marathon Club Place Rules:**

### **7.6 Criteria on eligibility for Club members to enter draw for Brighton Marathon (BM) Club allocated places:**

- 7.6.1 You must have been a fully paid up member of the Club since the end of June in the year of application (e.g. if you wish to be considered for a Club place in the 2018 BM you must have been a member since the end of June 2017)
- 7.6.2 You must be an active Club member and have attended a minimum of 10 training sessions since the end of June of the current Year.

The number of Club places allocated will not be known until late January. In the past the Club has received 4 places. Holding the Club ballot draw for places early will help Club members decide if they should go for a charity place.

Places will be allocated to Club members in the order which their names are drawn in the ballot

More than two names will be drawn out and additional names will go on the waiting list. If you receive a Club place in the draw and subsequently have to pull out, the place will be offered to those on the waiting list in the order in which they were drawn.

If you receive a place in the Club ballot you will be liable for the entry fee.

The draws will usually take place by the end of November after members know from LM if they have received a place in the main ballot or not. The draws will take place in the Clubhouse at approx. 8.30pm and the date will be published at least 2 weeks in advance.

### **7.7 Ballot Draw Procedure:**

- 7.7.1 The names for the London Marathon will be entered into the hat in the first instance.
- 7.7.2 Places will be offered to the first 2 names picked from the hat, with all names in the hat being listed as reserves in the strict order they are drawn in the Brighton Marathon draw.
- 7.7.3 Except for the first 2 runners are selected for the London Marathon places, all other names will be re-entered into the Brighton Marathon draw along with any additional names of runners who specifically applied for, or are only eligible for, the Brighton Marathon
- 7.7.4 Places for the Brighton Marathon will be offered to the first 4 names picked from the hat, with reserves in order of selection.

**Any decisions about eligibility will need to be decided by the Club Committee. The Committee's decision is FINAL.**

## **8 Appendix F – Election of Committee**

### **8.1 Procedure for Election to The Club Committee**

- 8.1.1 As part of the AGM, GVH members have an opportunity to vote for the posts on the Club Committee. All posts come up for election at each AGM. The existing committee members in effect resign and may choose to offer themselves for re-election. Any club member can apply for any post. The committee have drawn up the following rules for the election of committee posts. These rules are intended to make the election process as transparent as possible and to ensure all candidates are treated equally.
- 8.1.2 Club members who wish to stand for a post should nominate themselves by advising the club Secretary or via an online form if specified instead at least 14 days before the AGM. This includes current committee members who wish to offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. A member putting themselves forward for a post should also submit a brief written rationale on why they have applied for the post and why they think they would be a suitable candidate. This should be no more than 150 words and submitted to the club Secretary.
- 8.1.3 If a single candidate has applied for any post, the AGM will be asked to approve or reject their election.
- 8.1.4 If two or more candidates have applied for the same post, the following procedure will be applied:
- 8.1.5 The written rationale from candidates on why they have applied for the post and why they think they would be suitable will be circulated prior to the AGM.
- 8.1.6 A vote will be held by secret ballot conducted electronically in the 14 days prior to the AGM. Members who have not yet voted will still also be able to vote in person at the AGM, but members will be encouraged to vote in advance
- 8.1.7 The target timings are as follows:
- **5 weeks prior to AGM** – applications open: send an email to the Club secretary ([secretary@gadevalleyharriers.co.uk](mailto:secretary@gadevalleyharriers.co.uk)) specifying the role you want to be considered for (this includes existing club officers)
  - **3 weeks prior to AGM**– the names of all applicants received to date will be communicated to club members so everyone is aware what roles are yet to receive applicants
  - **2 weeks 2 days prior to AGM** – applications close and personal statements of up to 150 words specifying the reason for standing are to be submitted by all applicants via the web link (google forms)
  - **2 weeks 1 day prior to AGM** – voting opens (send via email to members registered email addresses)
  - **1 day prior to AGM** – online voting closes
  - **AGM** – members who have not already voted can vote at the AGM and results announced at the AGM
- 8.1.8 In the event of a tie the newly appointed Chair shall cast the deciding vote.
- 8.1.9 The Chair will not vote in the main ballot.
- 8.1.10 In the event of no candidates being received for any post by 14 calendar days before the AGM, further nominations will be sought following the AGM.